
 

1 
 

Committee Administrator: Angie Howell 
Tel: 01884 234251 

Email: ahowell@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 
Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy 

Development Group 
 

Tuesday, 29 July 2025 at 5.30 pm 
Phoenix Chambers, Phoenix House, Tiverton 

 
Next ordinary meeting 

Tuesday, 23 September 2025 at 5.30 pm 
 
Please Note: This meeting will take place at Phoenix House and members of 
the public and press are able to attend via Teams. If you are intending to attend 
in person please contact the committee clerk in advance, in order that numbers 
of people can be appropriately managed in physical meeting rooms.  
 
The meeting will be hybrid and an audio recording made and published on 
the website after the meeting.  
 
 

To join the meeting online, click here  
Meeting ID: 319 210 504 775 9  
Passcode: um7tp2ft  
 

 
Membership 
 
Cllr B Fish  
Cllr G Cochran  
Cllr C Adcock  
Cllr G Czapiewski  
Cllr A Glover  
Cllr C Harrower  
Cllr A Stirling  
Cllr G Westcott  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_MjFiMzhkYWEtMzhkMi00NzEyLWEwYjItMzczY2U5MmQ3MWI5%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%25228ddf22c7-b00e-4429-82f6-108505d03118%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522b2c631b7-dc59-44f1-924e-be2694383484%2522%257d&data=05%7C02%7Clwoon%40middevon.gov.uk%7C17b490893b9d42f8f15908ddc2e08637%7C8ddf22c7b00e442982f6108505d03118%7C0%7C0%7C638880991765020085%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ynt4DwSErBdRiROIglyDhAFPVXS%2BV16nqCcVuBiOgfU%3D&reserved=0


 

2 
 

Committee Administrator: Angie Howell 
Tel: 01884 234251 

Email: ahowell@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

A G E N D A 
 
Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any 
discussion which may take place 
 
1   Apologies and substitute Members   

To receive any apologies for absence and notices of appointment of 
substitute Members (if any). 
 

2   Public Question Time   
To receive any questions from members of the public and replies 
thereto. 
Note: A maximum of 30 minutes is allowed for this item. 
 

3   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 5 - 14) 
To consider whether to approve the minutes as a correct record of the 
meeting held on 10th June 2025. 
 

4   Declarations of Interest under the Code of Conduct   
To record any interests on agenda matters. 
 

5   Chair's Announcements   
To receive any announcements that the Chair may wish to make. 
 

6   Draft Devon Nature Recovery Strategy  (Pages 15 - 20) 
To receive a report from the Director of Place and Economy on the Draft 
Devon Nature Recovery Strategy.  
 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


 

3 
 

Committee Administrator: Angie Howell 
Tel: 01884 234251 

Email: ahowell@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

Stephen Walford 
Chief Executive 

Monday, 21 July 2025 
 

 
Guidance notes for meetings of Mid Devon District Council  
 
From 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in 
person. The Council will enable all people to continue to participate in meetings 
via Teams. 
If the Council experience technology difficulties at a committee meeting the 
Chairman may make the decision to continue the meeting ‘in-person’ only to 
conclude the business on the agenda. 
 
 
1. Inspection of Papers 
Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or the background papers for 
any item on the agenda should contact Democratic Services at 
Committee@middevon.gov.uk 
 
They can also be accessed via the council's website Click Here  
 
Printed agendas can also be viewed in reception at the Council offices at 
Phoenix House, Phoenix Lane, Tiverton, EX16 6PP. 
 
2. Members’ Code of Conduct requirements 
When considering the declaration of interests and their actions as a councillor, 
Members are reminded of the requirements of the Members’ Code of Conduct 
and the underpinning Principles of Public Life: Honesty; Integrity; Selflessness; 
Objectivity; Accountability; Openness; Leadership.  
The Code of Conduct can be viewed here:  
 
3. Minutes of the Meeting 
Details of the issues discussed, and recommendations made at the meeting will 
be set out in the minutes, which the Committee will be asked to approve as a 
correct record at its next meeting. Minutes of meetings are not verbatim.   
 
4. Public Question Time  
Residents, electors or business rate payers of the District wishing to raise a 
question and/or statement under public question time are asked to provide their 
written questions to the Democratic Services team by 5pm three clear working 
days before the meeting to ensure that a response can be provided at the 
meeting. You will be invited to ask your question and or statement at the 
meeting and will receive the answer prior to, or as part of, the debate on that 
item. Alternatively, if you are content to receive an answer after the item has 
been debated, you can register to speak by emailing your full name to 
Committee@middevon.gov.uk by no later than 4pm on the day before the 
meeting.  You will be invited to speak at the meeting and will receive a written 
response within 10 clear working days following the meeting. 
Notification in this way will ensure the meeting runs as smoothly as possible  

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories=
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/documents/s30898/CODEOFCONDUCTFORCOUNCILLORS.docx.pdf
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk


 

4 
 

Committee Administrator: Angie Howell 
Tel: 01884 234251 

Email: ahowell@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

 
5. Meeting Etiquette for participants 
• Only speak when invited to do so by the Chair. 
• If you’re referring to a specific page, mention the page number. 
 
For those joining the meeting virtually: 
• Mute your microphone when you are not talking. 
• Switch off your camera if you are not speaking. 
• Speak clearly (if you are not using camera then please state your name) 
• Switch off your camera and microphone after you have spoken. 
• There is a facility in Microsoft Teams under the ellipsis button called “turn on 
live captions” which provides subtitles on the screen. 
 
6. Exclusion of Press & Public 
When considering an item on the agenda, the Committee may consider it 
appropriate to pass a resolution under Section 100A (4) Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting on the basis that if they were present during the business to be 
transacted there would be a likelihood of disclosure of exempt information, as 
defined under the terms of the Act. If there are members of the public and press 
listening to the open part of the  
meeting, then the Democratic Services Officer will, at the appropriate time, ask 
participants to leave the meeting when any exempt or confidential information is 
about to be discussed. They will be invited to return as soon as the meeting 
returns to open session. 
 
7. Recording of meetings 
All media, including radio and TV journalists, and members of the public may 
attend Council, Cabinet, PDG and Committee meetings (apart from items Media 
and Social Media Policy - 2023 page 22 where the public is excluded) you can 
view our Media and Social Media Policy here. They may record, film or use 
social media before, during or after the meeting, so long as this does not 
distract from or interfere unduly with the smooth running of the meeting. Anyone 
proposing to film during the meeting is requested to make this known to the 
Chairman in advance. The Council also makes audio recordings of meetings 
which are published on our website Browse Meetings, 2024 - 
MIDDEVON.GOV.UK.  
 
8. Fire Drill Procedure 
If you hear the fire alarm you should leave the building by the marked fire exits, 
follow the direction signs and assemble at the master point outside the 
entrance. Do not use the lifts or the main staircase. You must wait there until 
directed otherwise by a senior officer. If anybody present is likely to need 
assistance in exiting the building in the event of an emergency, please ensure 
you have let a member of Democratic Services know before the meeting begins 
and arrangements will be made should an emergency occur.  
 
9. WIFI 
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network is normally available for meetings 
held in the Phoenix Chambers at Phoenix House. 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/355593/media-and-social-media-policy-2023-1311.pdf
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1


 

Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy Development Group – 10 June 2025 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
MINUTES of a MEETING of the PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP held on 10 June 2025 at 5.30 pm 
 
Present   
Councillors B Fish (Chair) 

G Cochran (Vice-Chair), C Adcock, 
G Czapiewski, C Harrower, B Holdman and 
A Stirling 
 

Apologies  
Councillor 
 

A Glover 
 

Also Present  
Councillors C Connor, M Fletcher, S Keable and S Robinson 

 
 
Also Present 

 

Officers:  Richard Marsh (Director of Place & Economy), Paul Deal 
(Head of Finance, Property & Climate Resilience), Jason 
Ball (Climate and Sustainability Specialist) and Angie 
Howell (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

Councillors 
Online  
 

  
E Buczkowski, J Buczkowski, G Duchesne and M Farrell 
and G Wescott 
 

   
 

 
1 ELECTION OF CHAIR  

 
RESOLVED that Cllr B Fish be elected Chair of the Planning, Environment and 
Sustainability Policy Development Group for the municipal year 2025/2026. 
 

2 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR  
 
RESOLVED that Cllr G Cochran be elected Vice-Chair of the Planning, Environment 
and Sustainability Policy Development Group for the municipal year 2025/2026. 
 

3 START TIME OF MEETINGS  
 
It was AGREED that the start time for meetings for the remainder of the municipal 
year continued to be at 5.30pm. 
 

4 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy Development Group – 10 June 2025 2 

Cllr A Glover sent her apologies with Cllr B Holdman substituting. 
 

5 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 
The following questions were received from the one member of the public attending 
the meeting: 
 
Andrew Moore  
 
Chair – I refer to items 11 and 14 on the agenda (relating to the Cabinet Member’s 
Report and Items for the Next Meeting, which includes budget). 
This is a ‘Policy Development Group’ and you are charged with ‘in-depth analysis of 
policy’, although I can’t see much recent evidence of that.  With a newly elected 
Chair, now halfway through your 4-year term, and with new information coming to 
light, I suggest it’s time to (revisit and) challenge the Council’s Climate Policy. 
 
The Cabinet Member’s Strategy has a broad-brush plan to save 45% of the tCO2e 
under the Council’s direct control;  what about the rest?  That’s just 13% of the 
Council’s Service Area.  In 6 years, there has been a reduction against the average 
of those contributions of just 77 tCO2e or ½ %, and at what cost to the public purse?  
Members; are you confident that the plan will deliver your goals for the Council, and 
that it is value for money against suggested climate impact costs? 
 
Or is there really much point anyway?  That Council Service Area is a tiny 1.8% of 
the 910k tCO2e for the district’s emissions:  99.75% is not controlled by the Council.  
The UK total is around 530 million tCO2e, that’s about 1% of the global figure, which 
is about 3% of total CO2 entering the atmosphere.  The Council’s impact is trivial to 
the point of meaningless. 
 
I challenge you to step back even further.  Is the Net Zero objective even valid?  Are 
we really in an ‘emergency’?  The climate is undeniably changing, but it always has.  
However, the suggested root cause is not as obvious as originally thought, model 
predictions are proving unreliable, possible impacts are often sensationalised, and 
our ability meaningfully to do much about it extremely doubtful.  There are some very 
well-regarded academics and specialists now speaking out against the accepted 
narrative – some would say dogma.  Public sentiment is also changing. 
 
To even suggest this is a heresy to those charged with delivering action, often 
provoking simplistic reaction and unthinking dismissal.  People don’t like having their 
beliefs (and jobs) threatened.  However, this Committee has a duty to put 
confirmation bias aside, dispassionately and openly look ‘in depth’ at policy and 
analyse its suitability, considering all currently available information.  You cannot, 
surely, just turn up once a quarter for routine update meetings when it’s clear that 
some fundamental questions should be asked.  That would be a complete failure of 
your responsibilities. 
 
So, my final question is this.  Will this Policy Development Group undertake a 
thorough and prompt review of Mid Devon District Council’s Climate Change Policy, 
independently challenging all aspects of the commonly accepted narrative against 
increasingly emergent counter opinions?  And if not, why not? 
 
 

Page 6



 

Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy Development Group – 10 June 2025 3 

The Chair stated that as the questions had not been received in advance, written 
responses would be provided within 10 working days and attached to the minutes. 
 

6 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2025 were approved as a correct 
record of the meeting and SIGNED by the Chair. 
 

7 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT  
 
Members were reminded of the need to declare any interests where appropriate. 
 
No interests were declared under this item. 
 
 

8 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chair thanked the Group for electing him as Chair. 
 
He reminded Members of the need to remain seated during agenda items that 
required a decision.  If Members left the meeting room or made a drink they would be 
asked to abstain from voting on that item. 
 
 

9 PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD Q4  
 
The Committee were presented with the *Performance Dashboard for Quarter 4 
2024/25.  The following was highlighted within the report:- 
 

 The purpose of the report was to give an at a glance understanding of how 
services were performing in terms of performance, finance and risk. 

 Measures that were part of the Corporate Plan were listed in yellow text. 

 The overall performance was presented in a pie chart and combined a RAG 
(Red, Amber, Green) rating to indicate if the performance was on track or not. 

 The Planning, Environment and Sustainability PDG outturn was shown as 
amber due to a small overspend.  This related to a mixture of increased 
staffing, mainly agency and costs across building control, enforcement and 
planning which was largely offset by underspends against the staffing 
establishments. 

 Building control income was marginally lower than forecast and showing as 
amber largely due to the depressed housing market. 

 The two indicators for capital projects were showing as red.  This related to 
one project to install electrical vehicle charging points, which was in the final 
stages of being scoped. 

 
Discussion took place regarding:- 
 

 The position of recruiting permanent staff.   It was explained that the Council 
was in a better position than neighbouring authorities.  However it was 
incredibly difficult to recruit professionals with specific qualifications especially 
for planning enforcement and building control.  There were very few 
competent and qualified building control surveyors.  The Council would 

Page 7



 

Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy Development Group – 10 June 2025 4 

continue to seek to address the issue and raise the challenges with 
Government bodies. 

 The employment of apprentices.   It was explained that the Council had a 
centralised apprenticeship programme and were engaging with colleges and 
local businesses.  The Economic Development Team had facilitated a 
business forum where colleges were invited to talk to local businesses to 
address the skills gap as there were very few skilled trades which was 
presenting a challenge in terms of local contractors and suppliers particularly 
for house building. 

 The slippage on capital projects with regard to electrical vehicle (EV) charging 
and where and when they would be installed.  It was explained that initially the 
costs were part of the Council’s budget to top up charging points within the 
Council’s car parks over and above the Levi scheme run by Devon County 
Council.  However the Council were looking to switch this to be community 
based and working with Town and Parish Councils where EV points could be 
provided in village halls etc and would be engaging with them to look at 
partnership proposals. 

 
 
Note: * Performance Dashboard previously circulated. 
 

10 BLACKDOWN HILLS NATIONAL LANDSCAPE MANAGEMENT PLAN  
 
The Group had before it a report * from the Director of Place and Economy 
considering the Blackdown Hills National Landscape Management Plan. 
 
The following was highlighted within the report:- 
 

 Part of Mid Devon District was situated in an area covered by the Blackdown 
Hills National Landscape formerly known as an area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty. 

 The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 required that Mid Devon District 
Council (MDDC) along with other relevant authorities produced a Management 
Plan for the Blackdown Hills National Landscape to be reviewed at intervals of 
not more than 5 years. 

 The Blackdown Hills National Landscape Partnership had performed this duty 
on behalf of MDDC and the other relevant authorities which included 
Somerset Council and East Devon District Council.  The Partnership was led 
by officers at Devon County Council with some involvement from officers of 
other local authorities. 

 The Management Plan blended national and local priorities and sought to 
address them in a way that was right for the Blackdown Hills, the landscape, 
environment and communities to ensure the special character of the area was 
conserved and enhanced for future generations. 

 This included a vision which set out four main themes, each with objectives, 
guiding principles, polices, targets and priority actions.   

 A draft Management Plan was previously reported to the Planning Policy 
Advisory Group in July 2024 and Cabinet in October 2024 and was subject to 
an 8 week public consultation from January to March 2025. 

 The Blackdown Hills National Landscape Partnership had now received 
confirmation from Natural England that the Management Plan met the 
statutory requirements and had broadly followed the guidance for preparing a 

Page 8



 

Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy Development Group – 10 June 2025 5 

strategy for the management of the national landscape and that it represented 
good practice. 

 Natural England commended the level of detail in the plan and recommended 
that some sections could be shortened or moved to an appendix annex.  The 
Partnership had taken those comments into consideration and had agreed that 
a supporting summary document could be prepared to explain the content and 
purpose of the management. 

 
Tim Youngs, Manager at Blackdown Hills National Landscape also highlighted the 
following:- 
 

 The document, when complete would be web-based showing images and 
videos. 

 The main sections included place, people, nature and climate. 

 Places would include sustainable land use, farming, forestry, planning, 
infrastructure and the historic environment.  

 Nature would include habitat restoration, connectivity, species conservation 
and ecological networks which would link to the Local Nature Recovery 
Strategy and the Devon and Nature Recovery Plans. 

 Climate links to Mid Devon’s Climate Plan and the Devon Carbon Plan which 
addressed climate change mitigation and adaptation through nature based 
solutions. 

 Blackdown Hills was important for storing carbon and it currently stored 7 
million tonnes of soil carbon.  Working with landowners was a priority to 
ensure that carbon remained locked up. 

 Many of those areas were really important for biodiversity. 

 The Framework had 10 targets which fed from the Government’s 
Environmental Improvement Plan and the Blackdown Hills was one of the 
protected landscapes charged with delivering ambitious targets.  

 
Discussion took place regarding:- 
 

 Whether the delegated authority to approve editorial changes would 
dramatically change the document.  It was explained that those changes 
would be points of small technical detail to ensure consistency throughout.  It 
would not affect the policies or the actions outlined. 

 The low uptake with land managers adopting nature friendly farming and 
whether this was due to the lack of finance or that the land was not suitable?  
It was explained that the area was environmentally sensitive and there was a 
shortage of farm advisory input and that a trainee had been recruited to help 
fill the gap as there was more work to be done.  A farm facilitation group had 
been set up with approximately 140 members which was farmer led. They 
were working at setting up workshops and training to raise awareness. 

 Carbon storage and how to increase it by sharing information with farms to 
help them change the way they work. 

 Whether any other areas could be promoted as a national landscape.  It was 
explained that this was not a quick piece of work but something that could be 
aspired to. 

 Flood prevention and the planting of trees to help absorb significant amounts 
of water and working with the farming community to ensure measures were 
being taken. 

Page 9



 

Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy Development Group – 10 June 2025 6 

 
RECOMMENDED to the Cabinet that:- 
 

1. The Blackdown Hills National Landscape Management Plan (Appendices 1, 2 and 3) 

is adopted. 
2. That delegated authority be given to the Director of Place in consultation with the 

Cabinet Member for Planning and Economic Regeneration to approve any editorial 

changes made to the Blackdown Hills National Landscape Management Plan. 

(Proposed by the Chair) 

Reason for the decision 
 
As set out in the report. 
 
Note *Report previously circulated. 
 

11 CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE UPDATE  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED a report* from the Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Climate Change which was presented by the Climate and 
Sustainability Specialist. 
 
The following was highlighted within the report:- 
 

 A Biodiversity Action Plan was in place and goals were being implemented 
including an early stage review of Council land management and opportunities 
to enhance nature.  “No Mow May” had just finished and work was being 
undertaken to maximise biodiversity opportunities. 

 The Council were considering the potential to enhance the conservation status 
for key areas such as local nature reserves. 

 The Planning Team were now recording the number of consents with 
enhancement and biodiversity net gain secured. 

 The Devon wide Local Nature Recovery Strategy was being formulated which 
would have implications for strategic local planning and planning decisions.  A 
Consultation would be carried out later this year. On-line resources would be 
available to help everyone play a role in nature recovery. 

 A presentation on the Local Nature Recovery Strategy would be taking place 
at the next meeting of the Planning Policy Advisory Group on 8 July 2025 to 
view the draft recommendations.  It was suggested that all Members attend. 

 The Climate Change Strategy and Climate Action Plan had been launched at 
the end of 2024 and early progress on the Action Plan was very positive.   

 An additional Project Manager was now in post to help deliver sustainability 
projects and had begun a feasibility report for solar power projects. 

 The Council had recently responded to a consultation by the Local 
Government Association (LGA) asking whether there should be a statutory 
duty for climate change.  A positive response had been sent to the LGA 
stating that the Council were keen for a statutory duty due but it must be 
supported by funding for climate related projects, partnership and 
programmes. 

 Work was being undertaken with good community engagement around the 
Climate Change Strategy to cultivate partnership work opportunities with 
residents and businesses.  The Council were also engaging with partners to 

Page 10



 

Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy Development Group – 10 June 2025 7 

support climate adaptation, including nature based solutions to improve 
resilience to deliver some local workshops which were being run through the 
Blackdown Hills National Landscape Team. 

 More expressions of interest for the Green Enterprise Grants had been 
submitted than in the last round for grants between £500 and £5,000 for small 
and medium sized enterprises. 

 Grants would be funded by £30,000 from the Council’s Climate Sustainability 
budget which would drive local investment and attract more funding to help 
reduce emissions. 

 Further partnership initiatives were being looked at to bring in further grant 
funding to projects and partnerships across Devon and to help prepare for the 
launch of the first Mid Devon Climate Forum which would hopefully take place 
over the summer. 

 The Net Zero Advisory Group would review its Terms of Reference this year. 

 A table was provided to the Group which gave a simple overview of 
engagement across the themes of the Climate Change Strategy. 

 Potential projects included working with farmers to enable soil protection and 
flood alleviation. 

 Work continued with other groups to identify shared priorities and aimed to 
look at ways to support people and help them to develop their bids or help to 
work with others. 
 

Discussion took place regarding:- 
 

 Promoting the work being done and how people could get involved.  It was 
explained that the Climate Forum being launched later this year would help to 
promote the important work being undertaken.  However wider messaging 
would be ramped up especially on social media and closer work with Town 
and Parish Councils with perhaps a presentation at the State of District 
Debate.  Also to work with Town and Parish Councils on the Emergency 
Action Plans. 

 The projects that the Green Enterprise Grants embraced.  It was explained 
that it was in the early stages of expressions of interest.  No bids had yet been 
received however it ranged from replacing sets of lightbulbs to solar panels 
and efficiency of water and energy use. 

 Whether there were annual targets of how to progress towards Net Zero.  It 
was explained that targets were in the Corporate Plan and every year a 
Climate Action Plan would be reviewed. 

 The potential to offer support and advice to Town and Parish Councils. 

 Whether the Council worked with Devon County Council (DCC).  It was 
explained that the Council did work alongside DCC as part of the Devon 
Climate Emergency Partnership to bring together and deliver the Devon 
Carbon Plan and climate adaptation.  This work was undertaken alongside a 
whole range of other partners in how to develop energy systems needed for 
Devon and fit in with the Regional Energy Strategic Plan.  

 Work with Exeter University looking at the landscape capacity for solar and 
offshore wind.  
 

 
Note: * Report previously circulated. 
 

Page 11



 

Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy Development Group – 10 June 2025 8 

12 PLANNING SUMMARY REPORT  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED a report* from the Director of Place and 
Economy summarising activity undertaken in relation to planning matters.   
 
The report summarised the actions from the proceeding months in relation to 
planning matters.  The following updates were included within the report:- 

 
(i) Development Management 
(ii) Building Control 
(iii) Conservation 
(iv) Planning Enforcement 

 
Discussion took place regarding:- 
 

 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and whether developers 
would be encouraged to use solar panels and heat pumps.  It was explained 
that the Council were awaiting further reiteration of the NPPF and once 
received this would give the Council a clearer mandate. Once it was published 
it would be applicable immediately. 

 The problems recruiting Planning Enforcement Officers and the concerns of 
Town and Parish Councils regarding planning enforcement.   It was explained 
that the Council had invested further funding into enforcement and had 
demonstrated a commitment to enforcement.  There were 2 Planning 
Enforcement Officers (one of which was from an Agency) dealing with a 
significant amount of live enforcement cases.  The post had been advertised 
several times with a significant market supplement however there had been no 
viable candidates.  In the meantime the Council would continue to use Agency 
Staff.  

 The review of Conservation Areas.  It was explained there was a commitment 
from the Council to develop a forward plan of areas to be reviewed. 

 
Note: * Report previously circulated. 
 
 

13 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Group had before it and NOTED the Work Programme * for the Planning, 
Environment and Sustainability Policy Development Group. 
 
The Chair informed the Group that there may be a Special Meeting of the PDG in 
August and asked Members to inform the Clerk if they were away during that time. 
 
 
Note: * Work Programme previously circulated. 
 
 

14 IDENTIFICATION OF ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING  
 
The items already listed in the work programme for the next scheduled meeting were 
NOTED. 
 

Page 12



 

Planning, Environment & Sustainability Policy Development Group – 10 June 2025 9 

The Chair asked the Group whether the use of anaerobic digesters should be 
referred to the Scrutiny Committee. 
 
It was explained that a Scrutiny Proposal Form would need to be submitted.  
However, this had been a topic at a previous Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Clarity 
would need to be given regarding what was different this time and to outline the 
required achievements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
(The meeting ended at 7.35 pm) CHAIR 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Report for: Planning, Environment and Sustainability 
Policy Development Group (PDG) 

Date of Meeting: 29 July 2025 

Subject: Local Nature Recovery Strategy 

Cabinet Member:  Cllr Steve Keable - Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Economic Regeneration  

Responsible Officer: Jason Ball - Climate and Sustainability Specialist. 

Richard Marsh - Director of Place and Economy. 

Exempt: The draft Local Nature Recovery Strategy (website and 
mapping). 

which are Exempt from publication under paragraph 3, 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended) as it contains information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information) 

Wards Affected: All 

Enclosures: (none) 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendation(s) 

To receive an update on the Local Nature Recovery Strategy and consider 

recommendations to Cabinet.  

Recommendation(s):  

The Planning, Environment and Sustainability PDG recommends to Cabinet: 

1. That approval is given to Devon County Council (DCC) to publish the 

consultation draft Devon Local Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS) and 

to go out to a public consultation. 

2. That delegated authority is given to the Director of Place and Economy, 

in conjunction with the Cabinet Member for Planning and Economic 

Regeneration, and the Cabinet Member for Environment and Climate 

Change, to make or approve any minor amendments to the 

consultation materials.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 

Section 2 – Report 

1.0 The Role of the Strategy 

1.1 Devon’s Local Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS) will inform nature recovery 

at a local level, by mapping habitats, features and key species to identify 

opportunities and priorities to boost ecological connectivity, diversity and 

abundance. Online resources aim to help everyone to play a role. 

1.2 England is considered to be one of the most nature-depleted countries in the 

world following historic losses and ongoing declines. The Government has 

made legally binding commitments to end these declines and for nature to 

recover. Part of this is a statutory requirement via Sections 104 to 106 of the 

Environment Act 2021 to prepare LNRSs.  

1.3 All public authorities have a duty to conserve and enhance biodiversity and 

must have ‘regard’ to the relevant LNRS in this process.  

1.4 DCC is the appointed Responsible Authority for Devon’s LNRS. Mid Devon 

District Council is a Supporting Authority for the LNRS, along with other local 

authorities and Natural England. 

1.5 Co-benefits to nature recovery include:  

 Climate Change adaptation and mitigation.  

 Water quality.  

 Natural Capital and ecosystem services.  

 Wellbeing. 

1.6 The LNRS will comprise a website and interactive mapping. These formats 

will enable the material and data to be accessible and useful to a wide range 

of audiences.   

2.0 Progress with the Strategy and preparation for public consultation 

2.1 DCC’s Ecology Team has led the development of the LNRS under the 

umbrella of the Devon Local Nature Partnership. Funding has been used to 

engage a team of wildlife experts to pull together the information required for 

the LNRS and to liaise with relevant partners. DCC has also engaged a web 

designer, copy writer and other consultants to work on mapping, water 

quality, natural flood management etc. 

2.2 The Cabinet Member for Environment and Climate Change, the Forward 

Planning Team Leader and the Climate and Sustainability Specialist have 

worked with the LNRS team to consider the LNRS resources and the 

consultation paper.   

Page 16

https://www.devonlnp.org.uk/our-work/local-nature-recovery-strategy/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2021/30/part/6/crossheading/local-nature-recovery-strategies/enacted


2.3 The Planning Policy and Advisory Group (PPAG) 08 July 2025 received an 

in-depth presentation about the LNRS map viewer and website from Sarah 

Jennings, County Ecologist at DCC, who leads the LNRS project team. 

PPAG, which was attended by some members of the Planning, Environment 

and Sustainability PDG, discussed the Strategy in depth and its significance 

to the Council.  

2.4 The draft versions of the LNRS website and interactive mapping will be 

presented to the PDG and to Cabinet.  

2.5 The draft pre-consultation LNRS material is confidential and not for the 

public realm. Development is ongoing e.g. data permissions are being 

negotiated and are subject to contractual agreements with data owners. 

3.0 Background details 

3.1 LNRSs are statutory and must include: 

 A description of the county’s wildlife, including opportunities and 

pressures. 

 Priorities for habitats and species (to prevent extinctions and 

increase abundance, following the Lawton principles of Better, 

Bigger, More, Joined-up). 

 Actions needed to achieve the priorities. 

 Actions for nature restoration that will help to meet other priorities 

such as carbon sequestration, flood control, better water quality, 

health and wellbeing.  

 Maps showing (a) designated sites and irreplaceable habitats; (b) 

places where we want to focus action. 

3.2 They must be user friendly. They must be produced in collaboration. 

3.3 They set out opportunities and will influence funding (Environment Land 

Management, Biodiversity Net Gain, Lottery Fund, etc.). They are not about 

new designations or restrictions. However, Local Planning Authorities must 

have regard for them.  

3.4 They are part of a ‘nested suite’ of nature strategies at a range of scales. 

The Devon LNRS sets out priorities at the county level and what we need to 

do to help meet relevant national targets. In turn it informs nature strategies 

at the sub county level which will also have their own local priorities 

(Protected Landscapes, local authorities, community groups etc.). 

3.5 Statutory ‘Supporting Authorities’ must be involved (local authorities and 

Natural England) and be given a 28-day formal consultation period prior to 

public consultation and post public consultation. 

3.6 They are funded by DEFRA and each has a Natural England lead officer.  

Page 17



3.7 They should be finalised in 2025.  

3.8 More details can be found at Defra regulations and guidance summary. 

4.0 Local nature recovery strategies and the planning system 

4.1 Government guidance is clear that LNRSs should be used by Local 

Authorities preparing local plans to inform the way those plans address the 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requirement to protect and 

enhance biodiversity. It is expected that a future update to the NPPF will 

include how LNRSs should be given weight in the plan making process. The 

Government will also provide separate guidance on how local authorities will 

be expected to comply with their duty to have regard to LNRSs through their 

planning functions. 

5.0 Next steps 

5.1 It is expected that, subject to approval by the supporting authorities, DCC will 

publish the consultation draft Devon LNRS for public consultation in mid-

September 2025.  

5.2 Following the public consultation and any amendments being made to the 

draft Devon LNRS there will be a further formal 28 day period in which the 

Supporting Authorities will be consulted, before the strategy is finalised. The 

post-consultation final Devon LNRS will be reported to the Planning, 

Environment and Sustainability PDG in the autumn including a 

recommendation to a subsequent Cabinet meeting.  

5.3 Once the final Devon LNRS has been approved by the supporting 

authorities, DCC must then notify the Secretary of State of its intention to 

publish the strategy; and can proceed to publish once the Secretary of State 

has given approval. Thereafter there will be duty for the responsible authority 

to undertake a review of the final Devon LNRS following notification from the 

Secretary of State there is a need to do so.  

 

Financial Implications. There are no financial implications associated with this 

report. 

Legal Implications. The Council’s environmental sustainability duties are 

underpinned by legislation e.g. Environment Act 2021.  

Risk Assessment. There are two main risks to the Council: 1) that the Council does 

not enable the LNRS as a supporting authority; and 2) that the Local Planning 

Authority does not ‘have regard’ for the LNRS as reflected in plan making and 

decision making. 

Page 18

https://devoncc.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/PublicDocs/Environment/Edh1DKXSxXJIvfiGRjtD4eYBKFZJMvhqVNTl6k6GzDbgfg
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.legislation.gov.uk%2Fukpga%2F2021%2F30%2Fcontents%2Fenacted&data=05%7C01%7Cjball%40middevon.gov.uk%7C6ab29a3c0db24f13cc2608dba24c8d76%7C8ddf22c7b00e442982f6108505d03118%7C0%7C0%7C638282221902975932%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sSdt6uk2QdPe7uhteDuwGYmSAyHIz4%2B7Y5G6rBO7iPw%3D&reserved=0


Impact on Climate Change. There is no impact associated with this decision / 

recommendation. The purpose of the LNRS is to inform and support nature recovery, 

and relevant co-benefits include: actions for Climate Change adaptation (e.g. natural 

flood management) and mitigation (e.g. restoration of habitats that are important for 

carbon storage and sequestration). These, in turn, can benefit interrelated aspects of 

environmental conservation and enhancement, such as water quality, Natural Capital 

and ecosystem services (e.g. soil conservation and restoration).  

Equalities Impact Assessment. There are no equality impacts associated with this 

report. Specific projects and policies are subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty. 

(Assessing the equality impacts of proposed changes to policies, procedures and 

practices is not only a legal requirement, but also a positive opportunity for 

authorities to make better decisions based on robust evidence.)  

Relationship to Corporate Plan. Please refer to priorities 1.3, 1.4, and 1.5.  

 

Section 3 – Statutory Officer sign-off / mandatory checks 

Statutory Officer: Andrew Jarrett 

Agreed by or on behalf of the Section 151.  

Date: 21.07.25 

 

Statutory Officer: Maria de Leiburne 

Agreed on behalf of the Monitoring Officer.  

Date: 21.07.25 

 

Performance and risk: Steve Carr 

Agreed on behalf of the Corporate Performance & Improvement Manager.  

Date: 17 July 2025 

 

Cabinet member notified: Yes. 

 

Report: Exclusion of the press and public from this item of business on the 

published agenda on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 

exempt information.  No. 

 

Appendix: Exclusion of the press and public from this item of business on the 

published agenda on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 

exempt information.  No. 

 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers 

Contact: Jason Ball, Climate and Sustainability Specialist: Email: 

JBall@MidDevon.gov.uk Tel: 01884 255255. 

 

Page 19

mailto:JBall@MidDevon.gov.uk


Background papers: Previous reports provided to PDG on 10 June 2025. For 

background details, please refer to previous reports, all available online.  

 

Links: 

Government Policy Paper: Local nature recovery strategies (30 June 2023).  

Page 20

https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=135
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=135
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-nature-recovery-strategies/local-nature-recovery-strategies

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Draft Devon Nature Recovery Strategy

